BLOOMFIELD ELEMENTARY Student Handbook 2020-2021



Table of Contents

Table of Contents	2
School Calendar	3-4
Bloomfield Elementary Vision and Mission Statements 5	
Enrollment Requirements	5
School Day	5-6
Attendance Policy 6-7	
Detailed Discipline Policy (includes suspension and expulsion)	
Bullying Policy	9
Thursday School and Saturday School 10	
Dress Code	10
Additional Policies	11
Bus Rules	11
Drug Testing	12
Cafeteria	12-13
Student Responsibilities Regarding School Work	
Search and Seizure	13
Harmony	13
Field Trips	13
Public Display of Student Work/Photography/Videotape Release	
Responsible Use Policy	14-16
Delivery of Messages and Articles	
Seclusion and Restraint Plan	16-18
Nurse's Office Policy and Medication Policy	
Immunizations	
Grades and Report Cards	
Correspondence Policy	19
Library	. 19
Parties	
Playground 20	
Textbook Rental Policy, Charges and Refunds	
Visitation	20
Winter Storms	20
Extra-Curricular Activities on Cancelled School Days/Delays Policy	
Athletic Information	21
Americans with Disabilities Act	2
Parents and Students Rights Concerning Education Records	
Parents Right To Know	24
Pest Control Policy	24
Public Review of Management Plans Availability	

Bloomfield Elementary School

2020-2021 School Calendar

Monday, August 10, 2020	-First Teacher Day "Meet the Teacher" Night
Tuesday, August 11, 2020	-First Student Day
Friday, August 14, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, August 21, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, August 28, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, September 4, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Monday, September 7, 2020	-Labor Day- No School
Thursday, September 10, 2020	-Progress Reports
Friday, September 11, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Thursday, September 17, 2020	-Parent/Teacher Conferences: eLearning Days
Friday, September 18, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, September 25, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, October 2, 2020	-No School: Apple Festival
Friday, October 9, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, October 9, 2020	-End of 1st Nine Week Grading Period (42 Days)
October 12-16, 2020	-No School: Fall Break
Friday, October 23, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Wednesday, October 28, 2020	-Report Cards
Friday, October 30, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, November 6, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, November 13, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, November 20, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, November 20,2020	-Progress Reports
November 25-27, 2020	-No School: Thanksgiving Break
Friday, December 4, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, December 11, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, December 18, 2020	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, December 18, 2020	-End of 2nd Grading Period (42 Days)
December 21-January1	-No School: Winter Break
January 4, 2021	-Begin 2nd Semester
January 6, 2021	-Report Cards
Friday, January 8, 2021	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, January 15, 2021	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, January 22, 2021	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, January 29, 2021	-Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, February 5, 2021	-Progress Reports
1/	-0 >

Friday, February 5, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm Friday, February 12, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm

Friday, February 15, 2021 -No School: Presidents Day
Friday, February 19, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, March 5, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, March 5, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm

Friday, March 12, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm

Friday, March 12, 2021 -End 2nd Grading Period (45 Days)

Wednesday, March 17, 2021 -Report Cards

Friday, March 19, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm
March 22-26 -No School: Spring Break
Friday, April 2, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm
Friday, April 9, 2021 -Early Release @ 2pm

Friday, April 9, 2021

Friday, April 16, 2021

Friday, April 23, 2021

Friday, April 30, 2021

Friday, May 6, 2021

Friday, May 13, 2021

Friday, May 20, 2021 -Last Day of Preschool
Tuesday, May 25, 2021 -Last Day of School (47 Days)

-Early Release @ 2pm

Thursday, June 3, 2021 -Report Cards

Friday, May 20, 2021

Bloomfield Elementary School 2020-2021 WELCOME

Welcome to Bloomfield Elementary School! The entire staff is excited about the 2020-2021 school year. This year promises to be an exceptional year for your child's education. Bloomfield Elementary School is committed to providing your child a comprehensive education. It is our belief that students should learn in an environment focused on meeting students' academic and social needs through excellent instruction and a variety of student programs designed with your child in mind. As principal of Bloomfield Elementary School, I invite you to take an active interest in your child's education. Please take time to read the Bloomfield Elementary Handbook. If you have any questions regarding the following information, please call the elementary office at 384-4271 or email me at mriggleman@bsd.k12.in.us. By working together, we can make sure your child has a successful school year at Bloomfield Elementary.

Elementary Principal, Mr. Michael Riggleman

Bloomfield Elementary School VISION STATEMENT

Our vision is for students to leave Bloomfield Elementary School with:

- A safe and caring environment.
- A strong enthusiasm for learning.
- Improvement of academic achievement and ability to apply the basic skills in all areas of daily performance.
- A set of positive character traits including respect for self and others, caring, citizenship, fairness, responsibility, and
- The confidence to meet the challenges of the future as productive citizens in an ever-changing society.

We value the relationship of all stakeholders and the importance of their role in achieving this vision for our students.

Bloomfield Elementary School MISSION STATEMENT

Bloomfield School's mission is to provide the technology resources and environment that are necessary to effectively integrate technology into curriculum and instruction to improve student learning, increase learning opportunities, and encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods.

ENROLLMENT REQUIREMENTS

All students **must be completely potty trained** to enroll/attend Bloomfield Elementary School. Students are able to have control of their bladders and bowels if they have had sufficient time and work on toilet training. We do recognize that students of this age may have an occasional wetting accident.

If a child has a wetting accident at school, the following procedures will take place.

- 1. The teacher will notify the nurse and send the student to the nurse.
- 2. The nurse will assist the child in changing the clothing (by providing necessary supplies... clothing, wet wipes, etc...), but the child must be able to change their own clothing. The nurse will notify the parents of the situation.
- 3. If the student is not able to change their own clothes, the nurse will contact the parent.
- 4. The parent must come to the school to change the child. The student will return to class.
- 5. Our clinic does have some spare clothing but selection is limited. Any clothing sent home with the child needs to be washed and returned to the school the next school day.

If a child has a bowel movement accident at school the following procedures will be followed:

- 1. The teacher will notify the nurse and send the student to the nurse.
- 2. The nurse will contact the parent to come to school to assist the child in cleaning up and changing clothes at school.
- 3. The parent may also take the child home to clean up and then return the child to school.

Any student that has multiple toileting accidents may be determined not yet ready to attend school. Teachers are not expected, nor do they have the time to potty train students given all of their other duties and educational needs of their class.

SCHOOL DAY

Students should arrive at school no earlier than 7:55 AM. Students may choose to eat breakfast in the school cafeteria. Students choosing to eat breakfast may enter the elementary doors at 7:55 AM. The doors open at 8:00 AM for all students. Elementary students who walk to school are asked to wait on the sidewalk outside the outer elementary Superintendent doors. Students are not to use playground equipment.

The elementary school day is from 8:10-2:55 PM. with assigned grade level lunch, recess, and activity time. Elementary students are dismissed at 2:55 PM. Students in the building after this time MUST HAVE A FACULTY SPONSOR WITH THEM.

Bloomfield School District is a closed campus. Students may not leave the school building area after arrival at any time during the school day without approval of the principal. **Any student arriving at or leaving school must stop in the office to sign in or out.**

ATTENDANCE POLICY

If your child is to be absent you should call the elementary school at 384-4271 before 10:00 am.

Greene County Schools, the Greene County Prosecutor and the Greene County Probation Office have worked together to update the Greene County Attendance Policy. The following is the Greene County Attendance Policy.

ATTENDANCE DEFINITIONS:

CERTIFIED-These absences **do not count** toward the **accumulation** of days per semester/year. **These days do count as a day of being absent from school.** Students may make up all work and receive full credit for the work.

Examples include: Doctor's visit with a statement, family funeral, emergencies approved by administration.

EXCUSED/LIMITED-These absences are **counted** toward the accumulation per semester and per year. Students will be allowed to make up all work and receive full credit for the work. Examples include: Staying home sick without a doctor's visit, prearranged absences. **Students are allowed 6 absences with a parent note per year.**

UNEXCUSED-These absences are **counted** toward the accumulation per semester and per year. Students will not receive credit for work missed during an unexcused absence. Examples include: Being truant from school, returning to school with no contact from a parent.

IF A STUDENT REACHES SIX (6) COUNTED ABSENCES IN ONE YEAR, ADDITIONAL ABSENCES THAT YEAR WILL BE UNEXCUSED WITHOUT A DOCTOR'S STATEMENT.

EXEMPT-As per state law the following do not count as a day missed from school and students may make up all missed work for full credit.

Prearranged permission to fulfill a state fair obligation

Prearranged permission to serve as a Page in the State Legislature

School-sponsored activity

Prearranged permission to work for a candidate on Election Day

Court appearances deemed necessary by subpoena

If a student reaches ten (10) non-certified in one school year a report will be made to Child Protective Services and the Greene County Prosecutor. Parents will receive notification of absence following the fourth absence per year and the seventh absence per year. At 10 days non-certified absences in one school year parents will be notified that the report will be made.

Each school district in Greene County may have specific consequences for their student absences for each semester. The semester guidelines for Bloomfield School District are as follows:

ATTENDANCE GUIDELINES

Excused/Limited, Prearranged, and Unexcused absences DO count toward the accumulation of days for the semester.

Attendance Procedures:

- 1. On the day a student is going to be absent, not pre-arranged, it is the responsibility of the family to contact the school. A parent or guardian should call the school between 8:00 A.M. and 10:00 A.M. We are required by law to know where our students are and to know why they are not in school. If a parent/guardian does not call prior to 10:00 AM, the student is assumed truant. Therefore, if we have not heard from the home, school personnel will make an effort to contact the parents at work.
- 2. A student may make up work missed during a limited absence. It is the responsibility of the student to ask each teacher the day he/she returns to school as to what work is to be made up. If the absence is unexcused, any work missed may not be made up for credit
- 3. No student is permitted to leave the school grounds without permission from the office. A student leaving school grounds without permission will be considered truant.

SCHOOL NURSE

The school nurse sending home a student is the same as a medical excuse from a licensed doctor. The school nurse sends students home for fever, vomiting, any communicable health related problems, or as deemed necessary by the school nurse and/or a principal. If the school nurse sends a student home for any reason, the student will have a certified absence for one day. Students sent home by the school nurse or seen by a licensed doctor due to head lice infestation will receive a certified absence. All further absences due to head lice will be unexcused.

PREARRANGED ABSENCES

Prearranged absences must be completed <u>5 SCHOOL DAYS</u> prior to the absence. Students must bring a note to the office requesting the absence. The student will have a form to complete and return to the office to be presented for administrative approval. PREARRANGED ABSENCES count toward the accumulation of days per semester.

PERFECT ATTENDANCE

Bloomfield School District students wishing to be considered for perfect attendance must attend class all 180 school days for the entire school day.

TARDINESS

Students may enter the school between 8:00-8:10 AM. School begins at 8:10 AM. Students who arrive from 8:11 AM to 9:00 AM will be considered tardy. Any student leaving after 2:00 will be counted as a tardy.

There will be no penalty for a certified tardy. Students who are tardy six times will be considered absent for one day. Parents will be notified in writing if excessive unexcused tardiness occurs.

DISCIPLINE POLICY

Creating a positive school atmosphere will enable students to reach their academic potential. When necessary, various disciplinary means will be utilized by the principal or his designee. This can include but not be limited to: warning, parent conference, assigning additional work, rearranging class schedule, restricting extracurricular activities, assignment to a special course of study, alternative education program, or alternative school, detention, denial of extracurricular activities, Thursday School, Saturday School, suspension from school, and exclusion from school or expulsion from school for the semester or year.

The following discipline policy shall be in effect for the 2018-2019 school year:

Minor offenses include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following types of student behavior:

- 1. Disruptive behavior (1st offense)
- 2. Display of affection with physical touching of another student
- 3. Failure to bring required materials to class
- 4. Gum chewing is not allowed
- 5. Violation of the dress code (1st offense)

Discipline given by the teacher may include one or more of the following actions:

- 1. Warning by teacher
- 2. Notify parents
- 3. Conference with student teacher counselor
- 4. School Issued Clothing
- 5. Detention

Major offenses include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following types of behavior:

- 1. Disruptive behavior leading to removal from class or school activities (2 or more offenses)
- 2. Use, possession or distribution of tobacco products on school property or at school activities (this includes products that have the appearance of tobacco or tobacco containers)
- 3. Fighting or provoking a fight
- 4. Use of inappropriate language
- 5. Failure to report to school or leaving school grounds during the school day without parent and school administration permission.
- 6. Forging or alteration of school forms or notes from parents
- 7. Cutting class
- Obscene or vulgar gestures or writing, possessing vulgar or obscene material, or engaging in explicit sexual conduct or vulgar conduct, sexting
- 9. Insubordination
- 10. Theft or possession of stolen goods
- 11. Inappropriate behavior at a convocation or any school sponsored event
- 12. Excessive tardies; see tardy policy
- 13. Being under the influence and/or possession of alcohol or drugs
- 14. Possession of fireworks or any type of deadly firearm weapon
- 15. Vandalism of an employee's, student's or the school's property
- 16. Violation of the dress code 2nd offense and all additional offenses
- 17. Intimidation of other students, teachers or administrators
- 18. False fire alarm or bomb threat
- 19. Cheating
 - a. 1st Offense Zero credit on assignment, Thursday School
 - b. 2nd Offense Zero credit on assignment, Thursday and Saturday School
- 20. Gambling
- 21. Being in the school building before or after school hours without authorized school supervision
- 22. Violation of I.C.20-8.1-5-4 (Indiana Student Due Process Code) or other school rules

Discipline will be administered to a student by the administration of Bloomfield School District when a school regulation or policy is violated. Discipline will include one or more of the following actions: (Parent will be notified of each major offense.)

- 1. Conference with student teacher parents
- 2. Conference with student teacher parents principal
- 3. Removal from class for one to five days
- 4. Lunch detention/detention with principal and/or his designee
- 5. Thursday School
- 6. Saturday School

OTHER GROUNDS FOR SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION: IC 20-33-8-14

The following types of student conduct constitute grounds for expulsion or suspension under Indiana law and this policy:

- 1. Using violence, force, noise, coercion, threats, intimidation, fear, passive resistance, or other comparable conduct constituting an interference with school purposes, or urging other students to engage in such conduct. The following enumeration is illustrative of the type of conduct prohibited by this subdivision:
 - (a) Occupying any school building, school grounds, or part thereof with intent to deprive others of its use.
 - (b) Blocking the entrance or exits of any school building or corridor room therein with intent to deprive others of lawful access to or from, or use of the building, corridor, or room.
 - (c) Setting fire to or damaging any school building or property.
 - (d) Prevention of or attempting to prevent by physical act the convening or continued functioning of any school or educational function, or of any lawful meeting or assembly on school property.
 - (e) Continuously and intentionally making noise or acting in any manner so as to interfere seriously with the ability of any teacher or any of the other school personnel to conduct the educational function under his/her supervision.
 - (f) Hazing of any kind will not be tolerated.

This subdivision shall not, however, be construed to make any particular student conduct a ground for expulsion where such conduct is constitutionally protected as an exercise of free speech or assembly or other right under the Constitution of Indiana or the United States.

- 1. Causing or attempting to cause damage to school property, stealing or attempting to steal school property.
- 2. Causing or attempting to cause damage to private property, stealing or attempting to steal private property.
- 3. Intentionally causing or attempting to cause physical injury or intentionally behaving in such a way as could reasonably cause physical injury to any person. Self-defense or reasonable action undertaken on the reasonable belief that it was necessary to protect some other person does not, however, constitute a violation of this provision.
- 4. Threatening or intimidating any student for the purpose of, or with the intent of obtaining money or anything of value from the student.
- 5. Knowingly possessing, handling, or transmitting a knife or any other object that can reasonably be considered a weapon. Possessing a knife on school property or a school bus is a Class B misdemeanor. Increases the offense to a Class A misdemeanor if the offender has a previous unrelated conviction and a Class D felony if the offense results in bodily injury to another person.
- 6. Knowingly possessing, using, transmitting, or being under the influence of any narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana, alcoholic beverages, or intoxicant of any kind. Use of a drug authorized by a medical prescription from a physician is not a violation of this subdivision.
- 7. Knowingly possessing, using, or transmitting any substance which is represented to be or looks like a narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana, alcoholic beverages, stimulant, depressant, or intoxicant of any kind.
- 8. Possessing, using, transmitting, or being under the influence of caffeine-based substances, substances containing phenylpropanolamine (PPA), or stimulants of any kind, be they available with or without a prescription.
- 9. Engaging in the unlawful selling of a controlled substance or engaging in a criminal law violation that constitutes a danger to other students or constitutes an interference with school purposes or an educational function.
- 10. Failing in a substantial number of instances to comply with directions of teachers or other school personnel during any period of time when the student is properly under their supervision, where the failure constitutes an interference with school purposes or an educational function.
- 11. Engaging in any activity forbidden by the laws of Indiana that constitutes an interference with school purposes or an educational function
- 12. Violating or repeatedly violating any rules that are reasonably necessary in carrying out school purposes or an educational function and are validly adopted in accordance with Indiana law, including, but not limited to:
 - (a) engaging in school misbehavior on school property
 - (b) disobedience of administrative or staff authority
 - (c) sexual harassment
 - (d) "bullying"
- 13. Possessing a firearm, deadly weapon, bomb, rocket, explosive or incendiary device, or any type of gun on or in school property, or on a school bus, or at a school function. (The penalty is expulsion as per Indiana Code.)
- 14. Committing a criminal gang activity or criminal gang intimidation on or in school property, or on a school bus, or at a school function.
- 15. Possession or use of an electronic paging device, cellular telephone, or hand-held portable telephone on school grounds during school hours, or on a school bus, or at a school function, in a situation not related to a school purpose or an educational function, or such possession without permission of the principal.

Bullving

Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying

Bloomfield School District is committed to a safe and civil educational environment for all students, employees, volunteers and visitors free from harassment, intimidation or bullying. There are four types of bullying defined by the State of Indiana:

- Physical Hurting a person's body or possessions. It includes hitting/kicking/punching, spitting, tripping or pushing, taking or breaking someone's things, and making mean or rude hand gestures.
- Verbal Saying mean things. It can include teasing, name-calling, inappropriate sexual comments, taunting, or threatening to cause harm
- Social/Relational Hurting someone's reputation or relationships. Social bullying involves telling other children not to be friends with someone, leaving someone out on purpose, spreading rumors about someone, or embarrassing someone in public
- Electronic or Written Communication This can involve cyber-bullying, collective or group note writing, any bullying undertaken through the use of electronic devices (computers, cell phones).

The State of Indiana has determined that school officials will be investigating claims of bullying when:

- 1. The individual committing the bullying behavior and any of the intended targets of the bullying behavior are students attending a school within a school corporation; and
- 2. Disciplinary action is reasonably necessary to avoid substantial interference with school discipline or prevent an unreasonable threat to the rights of others to a safe and peaceful learning environment"

Positive behavioral interventions, corrective discipline, and/or referral to law enforcement will be used to change the behavior of the perpetrator and remediate the impact on the victim. This includes appropriate intervention(s), restoration of a positive climate, and support for victims and others impacted by the violation. False reports or retaliation for harassment, intimidation or bullying also constitutes violations of this policy.

Reporting—if you experience or witness harassment, intimidation or bullying, immediately notify the nearest staff member. Complete a Report of Harassment/Bullying Form, which are available in the school office. All reports will be handled confidentially to protect the identity of those reporting.

School personnel should make a written report within 24 hours or one school day when they have observed or become aware of an alleged incident of bullying.

Once a referral has been received from an employee, student or through anonymous reporting, the principal (or designee) will initiate an investigation of the alleged bullying incident within 48 hours or two school days from when the administrator receives the written report.

Once the incident is determined to be a bullying incident and investigation is completed, appropriate disciplinary response and follow up services for both the targeted student and the bully are determined. The nature of the incident, disciplinary response and proposed follow up services are to be communicated to the parent/guardian of targeted student(s) and perpetrator(s) as allowed by law.

Considerations in determining if the behavior meets the definition of bullying:

- The history between the individuals: Have there been past conflicts? Have these individuals had a dating relationship? (This may
 not be considered bullying.)
- Power differential: Is there an imbalance of power? Power imbalance is not limited to physical strength.
- Repetition: Has this or similar incidents happened before? Is the individual worried that it may happen again?
- Are any of the individuals involved with a gang? This may result in interventions different from bullying.

Just because something does not fit the definition of bullying does not mean it will not be addressed.

THURSDAY SCHOOL AND SATURDAY SCHOOL

- 1. Thursday School for students in Grades 5 and 6 is from 3:05-5:00 P.M. Saturday School will be the first (1st) and third (3rd) Saturday of the month. Saturday school is from 8:00 AM until 12:00 PM.
- 2. Thursday School for students in Grades K-4 is from 3:05-4:00 PM. Saturday School will be the first (1st) and third (3rd) Saturday of the month. Saturday school will be from 8:00 AM until 12:00 PM.
- 3. Each student is expected to bring schoolwork and/or appropriate study and reading materials to keep busy for the assigned time of Thursday School or Saturday School. Such materials might include textbooks, library books, or workbooks. Paperback books, magazines and newspapers must be part of an assignment.
 - (a) No playing cards, games, puzzles, electronic and battery devices are permitted.
 - (b) Each student is expected to contact his/her teachers for assignments, make-up work, or extra credit assignments prior to the session.
- 4. Students who are disruptive, fail to keep busy on appropriate tasks, disobey the supervisor, sleep or give the appearance of sleeping, may be dismissed at the discretion of the supervisor. Dismissed students are subject to suspension or expulsion from school.
- 5. Students will not be allowed to go to lockers, leave the room, or use the telephone during the session except in an emergency situation.
- 6. Students will be assigned to specific seats.
- 7. Excuses with regard to athletic events, practices, work, etc. will NOT be permitted.
- 8. All policies for a regular school day are followed. No food, candy or beverages may be brought and/or consumed. Thursday School and Saturday School are in place of in-school detention. Thursday School and Saturday School allows a student to continue his/her education without interruption and afford extra time for important studies. Hopefully, this time will be a learning experience and one that will encourage a positive change in behavior, attendance, and punctuality. Not attending Thursday or Saturday is considered being truant, just as a student is truant if he/she skips school during the regular school day.

The administration does reserve the right to add or cancel Saturday School based upon the need or having too few students who will be assigned on a given Saturday.

DRESS CODE

Types of school dress which are prohibited during the regular school day:

- 1. Headwear inside the buildings during school hours unless approval has been given by the Principal.
- 2. Clothing that advertises alcoholic beverages, tobacco, weapons and/or illegal drugs.
- 3. Revealing fashions: i.e., extreme slit skirts, cut-outs, spaghetti straps, bare midriffs, exposed cleavage, tube tops for girls, all see-through clothing, miniskirts, bare shoulders and tight fitting clothes.
- 4. Skirts, shorts, etc...shorts must be mid-thigh in length.
- 5. Pajama pants are not allowed.
- 6. Undergarments worn as outerwear.
- 7. Footwear must be worn at all times.
- 8. Clothing, jewelry, buttons, or other forms of ornamentation which are distracting.
- 9. Facial piercings (except for the ears) are not allowed.
- 10. Sunglasses during school hours. Prescription glasses from an optometrist are exempted.
- 11. Mesh shirts unless a shirt is worn underneath.
- 12. Pants or other forms of dress with waistlines that do not reach above the hips; pants that excessively drag behind the student; excessively baggy pants; and pants fashions that have holes.
- 13. Chains hanging from pants are not allowed.
- 14. Jackets, coats, etc. are not to be worn in the classrooms.
- 15. Facial make-up which draws attention to the student with which is not necessary and/or distracting.
- 16. Exposed tattoos, tattoo look a likes or writing on the skin.

Dress code is subject to administrative discretion. At the request of the Principal or his designee, a student may be asked to make a change of clothing if the student is in violation of dress code. The parent will be contacted to bring in suitable clothing.

ADDITIONAL POLICIES

- 1. Students are not to bring soft drinks or food into the classroom area without administrative approval.
- 2. Electronic and battery powered devices (such as, but not limited to: Kindles, tablets, and IPods etc.), must be put away and not used during the school day. If they are confiscated parents/guardians will pick them up.
- 3. Skateboards, roller blades, scooters, laser pointers, cameras and camcorders are not permitted in the school building. Elementary students are not allowed to ride bicycles, scooters, or skateboards to school. The school is not responsible for non-essential items brought to school.
- 4. Cell phones may not be carried by students during the school day. Cell phones MUST be turned off during school hours and must be kept in students' backpacks. If a cell phone is confiscated a parent must pick it up.
- 5. **Visitors' passes will be issued at the discretion of the building principal**. Visitors must make prior arrangements with <u>all</u> teachers they will be visiting.
- 6. No student on school property or at school events may exhibit items or participate in activities in a manner identifying with a gang.
- 7. Unauthorized student use of the elevator is not permitted.
- 8. Students may bring bags such as book bags, gym bags, backpacks, etc. to and from school but may not carry the bags throughout the day. Backpacks with rollers are not allowed. Bags should be left in student storage areas or lockers during the day.
- 9. Playing cards, dice or anything with which does or might promote gambling are not permitted in the classroom.
- 10. Students making threats to staff members via the internet will be reported to the police and suspended a minimum of 10 days and face possible expulsion.
- 11. Sending, sharing, viewing, or possessing pictures, text messages, emails, or other material of a sexual nature in electric or any other form, including the contents of a cell phone or other electronic device may be considered as grounds for suspension or expulsion.

BUS INFORMATION:

In accordance with Indiana Law, it is a privilege to ride a bus. Violation of the rules and regulations noted may result in suspension of transportation privileges. School attendance is a state law and students suspended from the bus still must attend school.

Students must be waiting at the pick-up point when the school bus arrives. If a student is late, the driver is required to wait no longer than 30 seconds. The driver should sound the horn. If the driver is three minutes late, he/she need not wait. If the student is in sight, the student should be picked up.

Conduct on the Bus

General Rules:

- 1. Follow the direction of the driver at all times.
- 2. Find an assigned seat.
- 3. Do not stand or move around while the bus is in motion.
- 4. Talk quietly so the driver can hear traffic sounds.
- 5. Keep arms, feet, book bags, etc. out of the aisles.
- 6. Loud or profane language, or physical, or verbal harassment is not permitted.
- 7. Do not deface any part of the bus.
- 8. Do not litter on the bus.
- 9. Courteous behavior is expected at all times.

Disciplinary Action for Rules #1-#9 above

First offense driver calls the parent(s) and completes a misconduct report. A conference will be held with student, parent, principal,

and

bus driver.

Second offense bus riding privileges revoked for three (3) days.

Third offense bus riding privileges revoked for remainder of the semester.

Major Infractions:

- 1. Alcohol, tobacco and/or drugs
- 2. Fighting
- 3. Stealing
- 4. Interfering and/or distracting the bus driver

Disciplinary Action for Rules #1-#4 above

(a) Student has bus-riding privileges revoked for the remainder of the school year. In addition to losing bus-riding privileges, students may be suspended from school for up to ten (10) days and recommended for expulsion.

PLEASE NOTE:

Bus drivers may suspend a student from riding the bus for (1) day pending bus driver notifying parents. Additional offenses will be handled by the Principal based on the severity of the offense and may result in suspension from the bus for the remainder of the semester or school year.

Occasional student riders: (baby-sitting, spending the night with a friend, etc.) wanting to ride a bus other than their assigned bus must have WRITTEN permission from parent or guardian.

DRUG TESTING

The Board of School Trustees of the Bloomfield School District recognizes that the misuse of drugs and/or alcohol is a serious problem with legal, physical, and social implications for the entire community. As the educational institution of this community, the school should strive to prevent substance abuse and help substance abusers with education, rather than punitive means. This policy and program is intended for students who participate in extracurricular activities, student drivers, students volunteering to participate in the program, and those students exhibiting behavior causing reasonable suspicion. This policy will not affect the policies, practices, or rights of the school district in dealing with drug and/or alcohol handling, possession or use where reasonable suspicion is obtained by means other than random sampling provided herein. Bloomfield School District also reserves the right to test any student who exhibits cause for reasonable suspicion of drug and/or alcohol usage and follow current practices as outlined in the Due Process Procedures in the Student Handbook.

Bloomfield School District prohibits the use, possession, concealment, handling, or distribution of any drug or drug paraphernalia at any time on school property or at any school related event.

The testing program serves several purposes.

- 1. Intended as an integral component of the overall physical and mental educational program of the Bloomfield School District
- 2. Intended as a medical diagnostic aid in disclosing possible drug related problems and providing opportunities for early intervention.
- 3. To prevent students from participating in activities, and driving to school, while they have drug residues in their body.
- 4. To undermine the effects of peer pressure by providing a legitimate reason for students to refuse to use drugs detrimental to their health.

This policy applies to all students in grades 5-12 in the Bloomfield School District who wish to participate in extracurricular activities, including all school sponsored clubs and athletic teams, and student drivers, and/or those students who volunteer for the program.

Each student shall be provided with the consent form, which must be dated and signed by the student and by a custodial parent or guardian before such student shall be eligible to practice or participate in an extracurricular activity or drive to school. By signing the consent form, the student agrees to provide, at any time requested, a urine sample to be tested for drugs, alcohol, and tobacco. The custodial parent(s) or guardian(s) also gives consent for their child to provide a urine sample by signing the form.

In addition to those students who choose to participate in extracurricular activities, the school will also test any student who VOLUNTEERS to participate in the drug testing program, as well as students under the age of 18 whose parents wish to have them included in the drug testing program. Such parents must provide the school with their consent for participation in writing. Once consent is given for testing, it shall be in effect for the remainder of the student's tenure in the Bloomfield School District. Information regarding financial responsibility and disciplinary issues regarding positive drug testing results are on file in the elementary office and can be provided upon request.

CAFETERIA

We offer Breakfast and Lunch. Breakfast for students is \$1.50. Lunch for Students K-4th is \$2.65, 5th-12th grade is \$2.85. We have free/reduced applications for alternate pricing. Reduced Breakfast K-12 is 30 cents. Reduced Lunch K-12 is 40 cents. A student receiving free/reduced benefits must take a NSLP recognized meal to have milk free. Milk, alone, is 50 cents and students must have cash or a positive account balance to purchase. Both Cafeterias are on a computerized system. Each student has a debit account. Every student is given a P.I.N. (Personal Identification Number) to access his/her debit account. The number will stay the same until the student graduates. At mealtime, the student will key in his/ her P.I.N. number and the meal purchase will be deducted from his/her account balance. Students must have a positive account balance or cash to purchase extra meal or snack items. Students K-4 must have a note from a parent sent in, stating said student is allowed to use their account for extra meal items or snack items. The note is good for the current school year. Payments can be made by cash, check or online at www.myschoolbucks.com. Even if you do not wish to pay online, setting up an account with my school bucks is encouraged, as you can see what your child is eating and check their account balance. Cash or check should come to school in an envelope marked with students first and last name. There will be a locked "drop box" in the high school cafeteria that will be checked daily or they can give it to their teacher or a cashier in the elementary cafeteria.

Bloomfield School Cafeteria Prepay Account Policy – A student or adult account is a pre-pay account, not a charge account. We do allow meal purchases when an account happens to drop at once. The overall concern is to make the cafeteria a comfortable and enjoyable place to eat for all students.

Negative balance at time of checkout. From the time they are negative to a negative ten-dollar balance, we allow a breakfast and lunch meal to be purchased (charged) with no extras. If an account drops below negative ten dollars, a meal will still be provided with an alternate entrée (cold sandwich, milk, fruit & vegetable). Emails are sent out when an account is \$5.00 or below, as a courtesy. We may reach out by email, phone, or letter for negative accounts. We automatically transfer funds from graduating student positive accounts to a younger sibling account. Refunds due to withdrawal or graduation must be requested, in writing, within 30 days of the last day of attendance.

There are approximately 200 students in the cafeteria. The cafeteria rules for student behavior are as follows:

- 1. Students may speak guietly and raise their hand for adult assistance.
- 2. Students are to raise their hand to get permission to leave their seat.
- 3. Students shall be respectful and follow supervisor's directions.
- 4. Students shall use good table manners while eating.
- 5. Students may not touch other student's food.
- 6. Students are to obey all school rules.

Disciplinary actions may include but are not limited to the following:

- Students are reminded of rules and given a warning.
- 2. Students lose a portion or all of their recess period.
- 3. Students are removed from eating with other students.
- 4. Students are referred to the principal.

STUDENT RESPONSIBILITIES REGARDING SCHOOL WORK

- 1. HOMEWORK: It is not intended that students will finish all work during the school day. Students should plan to do work at home each night or as necessary. For best results, set aside a time and place where he/she can study. Make it a habit. If a student never has homework, he/she may not be getting his/her work done.
- 2. MAKE-UP WORK: Make-up work is the responsibility of the student. Once contacted by the student or the parent / guardian of the student, the teacher will make arrangements to make up work missed. The teacher and student will cooperate jointly regarding student opportunities to complete work missed. Students will be granted one school day to make up work for every day of excused absence up to a maximum of three days. Modification to this rule can be granted only after a parent-teacher-student conference. Students are required to contact ALL teachers THE DAY THEY RETURN TO SCHOOL to make arrangements for makeup work. All grading period and semester INCOMPLETE GRADES, must be made-up within two weeks (ten school days) after the distribution of grade cards. Failure to complete make-up work will result in a zero for the missing assignments (and the student's grade calculated with zero for these assignments). Disciplinary consequences as outlined in the School Wide Discipline Plan may also be used as a motivation to complete make-up work. Failure to comply with the MAKE-UP WORK policy may result in an academic penalty as administered by the classroom teacher or disciplinary penalty as outlined in the School Wide Discipline Plan.
- 3. Parents who wish to obtain assignments for an absent student should call the school office before 9:00 A.M. to make this request. Students are encouraged to make up as much work as possible before returning to school.

SEARCH AND SEIZURE

Desks and Other Storage Areas

A desk or any storage area in the school provided for students' use as well as the contents contained therein may be searched when the principal has reasonable suspicion for a search.

Student

The personal search of a student may be conducted by the principal when he/she has students' reasonable suspicion for a search of that student. Authorized searches of the students are

- The student's pockets;
- Purses, backpacks, or any other object in the possession of the student;
- A "pat down" of the exterior of the student's clothing and the removal of any item identified;
- Removal of an article of exterior clothing, such as a jacket.

Failure to comply with these guidelines could result in consequences as outlined in the School Wide Discipline Plan.

HARMONY ON-LINE INFORMATION FOR PARENTS

Parents and/or guardians can obtain a username and password from the secretaries in the elementary office to access Harmony. Harmony is the on-line system that allows a parent(s) to check on their student's progress. Further, a parent can check on attendance, tardies and discipline. Teachers also post their assignments on-line, thus allowing a parent to see what is happening on any given day in the classroom.

FIELD TRIPS

Students will have the opportunity to take field trips throughout the school year. Permission forms for field trips requiring bus transportation to the event will be sent home prior to the trip and must be signed and returned in order for your student to be allowed to attend the field trip. A walking field trip permission form is sent home at the beginning of the school year and must be signed and returned in order for your child to participate in any school-related walking field trips near the school grounds, i.e. Greene County Courthouse, Bloomfield Public Library, etc.

PUBLIC DISPLAY OF STUDENT WORK/PHOTOGRAPHY RELEASE

Public display of student work, photography by local newspapers, and videotaping by local television stations take place during various events throughout the school year. Your permission for your student to be photographed, videotaped or have their student work displayed in public is acknowledged when signing the Student Permission Form at the beginning of each school year. If you do not wish for your student to be photographed, videotaped or have student work publicly displayed please send a note to the office with your request.

Bloomfield School District Responsible Use Policy

The Bloomfield School District (BSD) recognizes that access to technology in school provides students greater opportunities to learn, engage, communicate, and develop skills that will prepare them for work, life and citizenship. We are committed to developing 21st century technology and communication skills that will allow students to be successful beyond the classroom.

This Responsible Use Policy outlines the guidelines and behaviors that users are expected to follow when using school technologies or personally owned devices on the school campus.

- The Bloomfield School District network is intended for educational purposes.
- All activity over the network or using district technologies may be monitored and retained indefinitely.
- Access to online content via the network may be restricted in accordance with our policies and federal regulations, such as the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA).
- Students are expected to follow the same rules for good behavior and respectful conduct online as offline.
- Misuse of school resources may result in disciplinary action.
- BSD makes a reasonable effort to ensure students' safety and security online, but will not be held accountable for any harm or damages that result from the use of school technologies.
- Students are held accountable for actions on educational platforms used within the classroom *even* in cases that students are using a personal device at home.
- Users of the district network or other technologies are expected to alert administrators and/or staff immediately of any concerns for safety or security.

Usage: All technologies provided by the district are intended for education purposes. All users are expected to use good judgment and to follow the specifics of this document as well as the spirit of it: be safe, appropriate, careful and kind; don't try to get around technological protection measures; use good sense; and ask if you don't know.

Examples of Responsible Use

I will:

- Use school technologies for school-related activities.
- Follow the same guidelines for respectful, responsible behavior online that I am expected to follow offline.
- Treat school resources carefully, and alert staff of any problem with their operation.
- Encourage positive, constructive discussion if allowed to use communicative or collaborative technologies.
- Alert a teacher or other staff member if I see threatening, inappropriate, or harmful content (images, messages, posts) online.
- Use school technology at appropriate times, in approved places, for educational pursuits.
- Cite sources when using online sites and resources for research.
- Recognize that use of school technologies is a privilege and treat it as such.
- Be cautious to protect the safety of myself and others.
- Help to protect the security of school resources.

This is not an exhaustive list. Users should use good judgment when using school technologies.

Examples of Unacceptable Use

I will not:

- Violate any local, state or federal statute.
- Use district technology in a way that could be personally or physically harmful.
- Use district technology to access, create, store or distribute inappropriate images or content including but not limited to pornographic, obscene, abusive, illegal or sexually explicit content.
- Use district technology to access dating or gambling sites.
- Engage in cyberbullying, harassment, or disrespectful conduct toward others.
- Take pictures, video or audio of other people without their permission.
- Try to find ways to circumvent the school's safety measures and filtering tools.
- Use school technologies to send spam or chain mail.
- Plagiarize content.
- Post personally-identifying information about myself or others.
- Agree to meet someone I meet online in real life.
- Use language online that would be unacceptable in the classroom.
- Use school technology for illegal activities or to pursue information on such activities.

Attempt to hack or access sites, servers, or content that isn't intended for my use.

This is not an exhaustive list. Users should use good judgment when using school technologies.

Violations of the Responsible Use Policy: Violations of this policy may have disciplinary repercussions, including but not limited to:

- Restriction or suspension of network, technology, or device privileges
- Notification to parents
- Detention or suspension from school and school-related activities
- Other actions as deemed appropriate by school administration
- Legal action and/or prosecution

Internet Access: BSD provides users with access to the Internet, including web sites, resources, content, and online tools. Access will be restricted in compliance with CIPA regulations and school policies. Internet browsing may be monitored and web activity records may be retained indefinitely.

Users are expected to respect that the web filter is a safety precaution, and should not try to circumvent it when browsing the internet. If a site is blocked and a user believes it shouldn't be, the user should submit the site for review.

Mobile Devices: BSD may provide users with devices. Users should abide by the same acceptable use policies when using district-issued devices off the school network as on the school network. Use of district-issued devices off the school network may be monitored.

Personally-Owned Devices: Students should keep personally-owned devices (including laptops, tablets, smartphones, and cell phones) put away during school hours—unless in the event of an emergency or as instructed by a teacher or staff for educational purposes.

Because of security concerns, when personally-owned mobile devices are used on campus, they should not be used over the school network without express permission from IT staff. In some cases, a separate network may be provided for personally-owned devices.

Email: BSD may provide users with email accounts for the purpose of school-related communication. Availability and use may be restricted based on school policies. Students may not access personal email accounts on district devices.

If users are provided with email accounts, they should be used with care. Users should not send personal information; should not attempt to open files or follow links from unknown or untrusted origin; should use appropriate language; and should only communicate with other people as allowed by the district policy. Users are expected to communicate with the same appropriate, safe, mindful, courteous conduct online as offline. Email usage may be monitored and archived.

Social / Web 2.0 / Collaborative Content: Recognizing the benefits of collaboration brings to education, BSD may provide users with access to web sites or tools that allow communication, collaboration, sharing, and messaging among users.

Users are expected to communicate with the same appropriate, safe, mindful, courteous conduct online as offline. Posts, chats, sharing, and messaging may be monitored. Users should be careful not to share personally-identifying information online. When using social platforms for the classroom, the same rules apply regardless of using a school device in the classroom or a personal device outside the classroom.

Security: Users are expected to take reasonable safeguards against the transmission of security threats over the school network. This includes not opening or distributing infected files or programs and not opening files or programs of unknown or untrusted origin. If a computer or mobile device is believed to be infected with a virus, please alert IT. Do not attempt to remove the virus or download any programs to help remove it.

Downloads: Users should not download or attempt to download or run .exe programs over the school network or onto school resources without express permission from IT staff. Users may be able to download other file types, such as images or videos. For the security of our network, download such files only from reputable sites, and only for educational purposes.

Digital Citizenship: Users should always use the Internet, network resources, and online sites in a courteous and respectful manner. Users should also recognize that among the valuable content online is unverified, incorrect,or inappropriate content. Use trusted sources when conducting research via the Internet.

As a point of emphasis, users should also remember not to post anything online that they wouldn't want parents, teachers, or future colleges or employers to see. Once something is online, it's out there—and can sometimes be shared and spread in ways that were never intended.

Plagiarism: Users should not plagiarize (or use as their own, without citing the original creator) content, including words or images, from the Internet. Users should not take credit for things they didn't create themselves, or misrepresent themselves as an author or creator of something found online. Research conducted via the Internet should be appropriately cited, giving credit to the original author. Consequences for those who plagiarize is outlined in the student handbook.

Personal Safety: Users should never share personal information, including phone number, address, social security number, birthday, or financial information over the Internet without adult permission. In addition, users should recognize that communicating over the Internet contains risks, and should carefully safeguard the personal information of themselves and others. Users should never agree to meet someone they meet online in real life without parental permission.

If a message, comment, image, or anything else online causes you concern for personal safety, bring it to the attention of an adult (teacher or staff if at school; parent if at home) immediately.

Cyberbullying: Cyberbullying is bullying and will not be tolerated. See handbook for more specific guidelines. Engaging in these behaviors, or any online activities intended to harm (physically or emotionally) another person, will result in disciplinary action and potential loss of privileges. In some cases, cyberbullying can be a crime. Remember that your activities are monitored and retained.

Limitation of Liability: BSD will not be responsible for damage or harm to persons, files, data, or hardware. While BSD employs filtering and other safety and security mechanisms, and attempts to ensure their proper function, it makes no guarantees as to their effectiveness.

BSD will not be responsible, financially or otherwise, for unauthorized transactions conducted over the school network.

DELIVERY OF MESSAGES/ARTICLES POLICY:

- 1. Emergency messages from parents ONLY will be delivered. Please avoid unnecessary messages being delivered during the school day.
- 2. Articles of priority (glasses, medicine, etc.) will be delivered as soon as reasonably possible.
- 3. When flowers and gifts are delivered to school for students, the item will be delivered to the classroom at the end of the school day.

Seclusion and Restraint Plan

A. Overview

Every effort should be made to prevent the need to restrain or place students in seclusion. However, the Bloomfield School District recognizes that at times it may become necessary for staff to use reasonable restraints or seclusion when other interventions are ineffective and there is an imminent risk of injury. Restraint or seclusion should not be used as a means of punishment or convenience. All behavioral interventions used must ensure the right of all students to be treated with dignity and respect.

A supportive school environment can greatly reduce, and in many cases eliminate, the need for restraint or seclusion. All schools will use prevention, positive behavior intervention and support, and conflict de-escalation strategies to eliminate or minimize the need for use of restraint or seclusion. School staff should promote and teach students appropriate behavior and should model appropriate behavior with their own conduct.

This Restraint and Seclusion Plan applies to all staff and to all students, not only students with disabilities. Any behavioral intervention, including any physical restraint or seclusion, must be consistent with any applicable behavioral intervention plan (BIP), or individualized education program (IEP), as well as with this Plan.

B. Restraint

1) What is and is not "restraint"

"Chemical restraint" means the administration of a drug or medication to manage a student's behavior or restrict a student's freedom of movement that is not a standard treatment or dosage or both for the student's medical or psychiatric condition.

"Mechanical restraint" means the use of a mechanical device, material or equipment attached or adjacent to a student's body that the student cannot remove and that restricts the freedom of movement of all or part of the student's body or restricts normal access to the student's body.

The term *does not include* materials or equipment that is used as authorized by a licensed physician or other qualified health-care professional (such as a PT or OT). The term also *does not include* a bus harness or other safety equipment that is used to safely restrain a student during transport.

"Physical restraint" means physical contact between a school employee and a student in which the student unwillingly participates, and that involves the use of a manual hold to restrict freedom of movement of all or part of a student's body or to restrict normal access to the student's body.

The term *does not include*: (1) briefly holding a student without undue force in order to calm or comfort the student, or to prevent unsafe behavior, such as running into traffic or engaging in a physical altercation; (2) physical escort; (3) physical contact intended to gently assist or prompt a student in performing a task or to guide or assist a student from one area to another; or (4) the use of a bus harness or other safety equipment that is used to safely restrain a student during transport.

2) Use of Restraint

- Chemical Restraints are not allowed.
- Mechanical Restraints are not allowed.
 - Mechanical devices, materials, or equipment authorized by a licensed physician or other qualified health-care professional (such as a physical or occupational therapist) are not "mechanical restraints" under this Plan, and may be used by staff trained in their safe use.
 - o Transportation safety restraints are also not "mechanical restraints" subject to this Plan.
- Physical Restraint shall only be used when a student's behavior presents an imminent risk of injury to the student or others.
- Physical Restraint shall only be used as a last resort when other less restrictive interventions are ineffective.
- Except in emergency situations when trained staff are not available, restraint should *only* be employed by staff members who have been trained in the safe use of restraint.
- Restraint shall never be used in a manner that restricts the child's breathing or intentionally harm the child.
- Restraint shall only be used for a short period of time or until the imminent risk of injury has passed.

C. Seclusion

1) What is and is not "seclusion"

"Seclusion" means the confinement of a student alone in a room or area from which the student physically is prevented from leaving.

A "time-out" in which a student is not alone or is not physically prevented from leaving is not "seclusion" under this Plan.

2) Use of Seclusion

- Seclusion shall only be used when a student is displaying behavior that presents an imminent risk of serious physical harm to the student
 or others, and the threat could be diminished if the student was in a safe environment away from other students and staff.
- Seclusion shall only be employed as a last resort when other less restrictive interventions are ineffective.
- Seclusion should only be used as long as necessary and shall be discontinued when there is no longer an imminent risk of injury.
- Seclusion should only be employed by staff members who have received training in the safe use of seclusion.
- A staff member must carefully and continually visually monitor every instance of seclusion to ensure that the safety of the student and others.

3) Seclusion Environments

All seclusion environments shall:

- Be of large enough to reasonably accommodate the student and at least one adult;
- Have adequate lighting and ventilation;
- Permit continuous visual monitoring of the student;
- Meet current fire and safety codes;
- Not be locked, except that a latching device that a staff member must continuously activate to prevent a door from opening is allowed.

D. Examination and Parental Notification

- Immediately after the student has calmed down following the use of restraint or seclusion, a staff member not involved with the incident shall examine the student to ascertain if any injury has been sustained during the seclusion or restraint.
- The building principal or designee shall attempt to verbally report every instance of restraint or seclusion to the parent/guardian of the student on the same school day of the incident.

E. Debriefing, Documenting, and Reporting

As soon as practical, but always within 3 school days after an incident of restraint or seclusion, the director or designee shall ensure that an incident report is completed for each instance of the use of seclusion or restraint. The incident report should include the following:

- The student's name;
- A description of any relevant events and interventions used prior to the restraint or seclusion, of the restraint or seclusion used, and any effects of the restraint or seclusion;
- Date of the incident;
- The beginning and ending times of the restraint or seclusion;
- A list of school personnel involved in the incident;
- The date and time on which the parent/guardian was notified;
- o A description of the debriefing of the student and/or staff involved in the incident.
- The incident report will be saved in the student's record, given to the Director, and sent to the student's parents.
- The Superintendent or his designee will review reports to monitor multiple uses in the same classroom or by the same staff members to determine if strategies or procedures should be revised.

F. Training

The Bloomfield School District will provide recurrent training to certified staff (teachers, therapists, and administrators) who have regular direct contact with students on:

- Effective alternatives to restraint and seclusion, including: conflict de-escalation techniques, and positive supports and behavioral intervention techniques;
- Steps to avoid the use of seclusion or restraint;
- The safe use of seclusion and restraint in appropriate cases;
- Debriefing practices and procedures.

Documentation of training shall be kept that includes: the name and position of those trained, who provided the training, when the training was completed, and a short description of the training. Initial and/or Refresher Training will be provided annually by certified trainers.

Substitute teachers, volunteers, and others not trained will be directed not to restrain or place students in seclusion, unless it is an emergency and trained staff are unavailable.

G. Annual Review and Reporting

The Superintendent or his designee will designate a coordinator of data, planning and oversight of the use of restraint or seclusion procedures in the Cooperative.

At least annually, the designated administrator will review the data on the use of restraint and seclusion in the district in order to improve the use of prevention, positive behavior intervention and support, and conflict de-escalation techniques to minimize the use of restraint or seclusion, and to consider revising this Plan.

This restraint and seclusion plan shall be posted on the Bloomfield School District's website and a link to the plan will be provided.

H. <u>Emergencies, Law Enforcement, and Use of Physical Force with Non-Students</u>

Nothing in this Plan prevents a school employee from stopping a physical altercation, acting to prevent physical harm to a student or another individual, or acting to address an emergency until the emergency is over, whether or not the school employee has received formal training on the use of restraint or seclusion. If a staff member's emergency use of physical force constitutes "restraint" or "seclusion" under this Plan, the notification, reporting, and debriefing requirements of the Plan should be followed.

This Plan does not apply to School Resource Officers (SROs) who may need to use physical force or to restrain or seclude a student while performing law enforcement duties. SROs will follow their own procedures and training when performing law enforcement duties.

NURSE'S OFFICE POLICY

Students must get permission to go to the nurse's office from the teacher. The teacher shall notify the office immediately if there is an emergency. Students should never call home to be picked up for illness until they have checked with the nurse's office or the principal's office. Parents must sign an over the counter consent form before the nurse will administer medications at school. If a student needs a prescription medication administered at school, the parent/guardian must contact the nurse for information regarding consents and prescription medication policy information.

HEAD LICE POLICY:

Parents have the primary responsibility in the detection, prevention and treatment of head lice through routine checks of their child's hair and proper treatment if live lice are found. While head lice are a nuisance, they do not spread disease and are not a public health issue. Parents are encouraged to notify the nurse/clinic assistant if their child is found to have head lice. The primary goal of identification and notification of a lice infestation in the school setting is to ensure that the child receives safe and effective treatment. Should a student present at school with a possible case of head lice, the school nurse/clinic assistant will maintain confidentiality, verify the presence of an active infestation, and bring it to the attention of the student's parent/guardian. Presence of nits alone is not a reason to exclude a child from school. Students with live, crawling lice and nits closer than 1cm from scalp will be considered an active infestation and would require treatment or manual removal of nits. Exclusion for an active infestation will be determined on a case by case basis. Parents will be instructed on appropriate treatment and prevention methods and asked to return to the school nurse's office with their child after treatment for a recheck. Head lice checks are done individually and on an as-needed basis for detection and for follow up after treatment. Siblings and close contacts of students with head lice may be checked at the discretion of the nurse or clinic assistant. These guidelines are supported by the American Academy of Pediatrics, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), and the National Association of School Nurses. Students may miss one day for the removal of lice.

IMMUNIZATIONS

2019-2020 School Year

Indiana State Department of Health School Immunization Requirements

Grades KG to 5:	3 Hepatitis B	2 MMR
	5 DTaP	2 Varicella
	4 Polio	2Hepatitis A
Grade 6:	3 Нер В	2 Varicella
	5 DTap	2 Hepatitis A
	4 Polio	1 Tdap

2 MMR

When a student enrolls in a school corporation for the first time or any subsequent time and at any level, the parents must show either that the student has been immunized or that a current religious or medical objection is on file. The religious objection form must be submitted annually. Parents must provide the School District with complete immunization records prior to the beginning of the school year.

GRADES AND REPORT CARDS:

Bloomfield Schools operate on four nine-week grading periods. The general grading scale for Bloomfield Elementary is as follows:

1 MCV4 (Meningococcal)

A+	100
Α	99-93
A-	92-90
B+	89-87
В	86-83
B-	82-80
C+	79-77
С	86-73
C-	72-70
D+	69-67
D	66-63
D-	62-60
F	59 and below

Progress reports are given during the fifth week of a grading period. Parents are to sign and return the report to school. Report cards will be given at the end of the nine-week grading period. Parents are to sign the report and return it as soon as possible. The parent's signature on these reports does not mean that the parent approves of the report, but he/she has inspected it. Teachers may withhold a child's grade until he/she has performed some important assigned task.

CORRESPONDENCE

Teachers will contact the parents (checked on report card, by note, or phone call) if a child is not making satisfactory academic progress. A plan will be developed with the parents to encourage maximum academic growth. Parents will be kept informed if the child continues to do failing work, especially if retention is being considered.

LIBRARY

Students visit the school library once weekly and are allowed to check out one book. Students need to return books on their weekly visits. If a book is not returned within a month and cannot be found, the student will be responsible to pay for the lost book.

PARTIES

Teachers decide if they wish to plan and manage seasonal parties. If parents wish to provide a classroom treat in honor of a child's birthday, it should be kept simple and planned in advance with the teacher. Treats should be passed out at recess, lunch, or at the end of school.

PLAYGROUND

For the safety of all children the following rules will be enforced during outside recess:

- 1. No rough play such as tripping, pushing, fighting, etc.
- 2. No tackle football.
- 3. No rock or snowball throwing.
- 4. No student is permitted to leave the playground area. He/she is to stay within sight of the teachers on duty.
- 5. Whenever an organized game is being played, students not participating are to be courteous and make an effort to stay out of the playing area.
- 6. Students are to play safely on equipment; line up to take turns on equipment.
- 7. Children are to stay off the concrete ledges, steps, and bleachers.
- 8. Each student shall play in a peaceful and orderly manner with his/her fellow students on the playground.
- 9. Students shall go to and from the play areas quietly with order.
- 10. Students shall not damage school property or equipment.
- 11. Balls or equipment outside the play area may be retrieved only with teacher permission.
- 12. Students are to be respectful of playground supervisors and follow their directives.
- 13. Students are not to use profanity.
- 14. Students are not to engage in gang-like, intimidating, or demeaning behavior.
- 15. Students are not to engage in any sexually suggestive behavior.

Children will be expected to go outside during recess. An exception may be made if a note from the student's parent, doctor or school nurse is presented, or at a teacher's discretion directing his/her to remain indoors. Teachers will send a copy of a note from the parent or doctor limiting the child's activities to the P.E. teacher.

TEXTBOOK RENTAL POLICY, CHARGES, AND REFUNDS

Textbook rental is due upon enrollment on the first day of school. All unpaid accounts will be turned over to the Small Claims Court. If a student enrolls during the school year, the amount of the fee will be based on the number of grading periods remaining at the time the student is enrolled. If a student withdraws from school, the amount of refund will be based on the number of grading periods remaining in the school year.

The parents of students are financially responsible for damaged, lost, or mutilated textbooks. Financial assistance is available for textbook rental through the State Assistance Program. Income guidelines and application forms are available in the office. Families who qualify for free or reduced lunches qualify for textbook assistance.

VISITATION

Parents are welcome to visit the school. Parents are to contact the school office or the teacher to make certain that the time of the visit will not disturb a classroom activity or interrupt testing. The time of the visit must be agreeable to all teachers involved. Parents are required to have a background check on file and need to report to the appropriate office when entering the building and receive a hall pass; this will ensure the safety of all students. No person may visit a classroom without first reporting to the appropriate office. Parents are welcome to come in and have lunch with their child on Fridays or the child's birthday. An adult shall always accompany preschool-age children who visit the school. No preschool child may be at school under the supervision of a minor for liability reasons. Friends of students not enrolled in Bloomfield Elementary school are not allowed to visit during the school day or during lunch/recess.

WINTER STORMS

- 1. In case of inclement weather please listen to or watch, WTWO (Channel 2), WTHI (Channel 10), WTHR (Channel 13), WWBL (106.5 fm), Hi 99 (Radio Station), WNDI (103.7 fm), and WFIU (103.7 fm).
- 2. The school messenger system will be launched to call the home and cell phone numbers provided by parents to announce any delay or cancellation.

EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITY (ECA) ON CANCELED SCHOOL DAYS/DELAYS POLICY:

The following is a policy for extra-curricular activity practices/events when school is delayed, canceled or under snow/weather emergency:

Out-of-Season Sports

When school is delayed, released early, or canceled due to inclement weather, all out-of-season sports activities shall be canceled.

School Delay

In the event of a delayed start time for school due to weather conditions, morning practices and rehearsals shall be canceled. They may be scheduled at the end of the school day.

School Cancellation

In the event of school being canceled due to weather conditions, normal practices/rehearsals may be canceled at the discretion of the athletic director/principal.

Snow Emergency

In the event of a snow emergency for Greene County, all practices/rehearsals/performances shall be canceled.

ATHLETIC INFORMATION

Academics

Student Athletes must be passing in order to participate. Grades will be checked throughout the school year. If there is an F the student will have a one week warning period. If the grade does not improve the next week the student will not participate in practices or contests. Coaches may have stricter guidelines with approval of the athletic director and principal.

Transportation

Student Athletes <u>MUST TRAVEL TO AND FROM AWAY EVENTS</u> in the transportation provided by the school. Athletes must show proper behavior and respect when riding all school vehicles. Vehicles are to be picked and clean when returned.

- a. Injury which might require alternate transportation.
- b. **Prior** arrangement with a coach **and** athletic director, made by the parent/guardian of the participant, along with a transportation waiver.

Practice / Attendance

To participate in any practice or event, the student must be at school ALL DAY. Exception will only be made for certified absences

Student Athletes who miss five (5) consecutive days of school must present a doctor's clearance before practice or participation can be resumed. Dates must be stipulated by the physician for re-entry into participation. The dates must be followed exactly as they are written. No athlete will be permitted to begin practicing for another season until said athlete is free and clear of any athletic equipment that is missing or owing money for such. Participation in more than one athletic activity during the same season will be allowed only by agreement of the coaches/sponsors involved, and approval by the athletic director and building principal.

All practices, events, and workouts shall be properly supervised by a coach at all times.

Insurance

It is the responsibility of the parents or guardians to have some type of accident or health insurance coverage for their participating son or daughter. The parent must complete verification of such coverage on the physical form.

Try-Outs and "Cutting"

Students that try-out and do not make the squad or team, have the right to see their scores and understand what areas they can improve. Meetings to see scores or raise concerns with the coach or sponsor must go through the athletic director.

Bloomfield School District

Americans With Disabilities Act Recruitment, Advertisement, Application, and Employment Notice of Non-Discrimination

The Bloomfield School District is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). We intend to ensure that individuals with disabilities, whether they are employed, apply for a position, or visit facilities within our school corporation are treated fairly and given an equal opportunity to access our faculties, programs, activities, and employment.

It is unlawful for Bloomfield School District to discrimination on the basis of disability against a qualified individual with a disability in regard to:

- (a) recruitment, advertising job application, and employment procedures;
- (b) hiring, upgrading, promotion, award of tenure, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, right of return from layoff, and rehiring
- (c) rates of pay or any other form of compensation and changes in compensation;
- (d) job assignments, job classifications, organizational structures, position descriptions, lines of progression, and seniority lists;
- (e) leaves of absence, sick leave, or any other leave;
- (f) fringe benefits available by virtue of employment, whether or not administered by the covered entity;
- (g) selection and financial support for training, including: apprenticeships, professional meetings, conferences, and other related activities, and selection for leaves of absence to pursue training
- (h) activities sponsored by a covered entity including social and recreational programs;
- (i) any other term, condition, or privilege of employment.

Bloomfield School District will not isolate individuals with disabilities, discrimination on the basis of disabilities through contracts, avoid using qualification standards, criteria, methods of administration, or tests that discriminate against individuals with disabilities, avoid not making reasonable accommodations to an otherwise qualified individual with a disability.

The ADA requires that we focus on the ability, not the disability of the individual. We will consider reasonable accommodations providing the individual can perform the essential functions of the position. We are not required, however, to give preferential treatment to individuals with disabilities or lower our standards for performance.

Bloomfield School District is committed to meeting the intent and spirit of the ADA. All employees are urged in helping Bloomfield School District to meet this goal.

If you believe that Bloomfield School District has discriminated against you or someone you know on the basis of disability, or if you have questions or concerns about our responsibilities in this regard, please contact Jeff Gibboney, Section 504 Coordinator, Section 504/ADA Coordinator, (P.O. Box 266 Bloomfield, IN 47424).

References

29 C.F.R. Sec. 1630.4, 56 Fed. Reg. 35736-35737, 26 July 1991. 42 U.S.C. 12112(Sec. 102[b]).

Annual Notice to Parents and Students of Their Rights Concerning Education Records

Education records are governed by federal and state laws and regulations. The requirements of these laws and regulations are contained in school board policy #8330, entitled Education Records. Generally, this policy provides for the following:

- (1) Records are confidential and may be disclosed only as provided in the policy.
- (2) The policy concerns both elementary and secondary student education records.
- (3) Parents and students have a right to examine their student's education records at reasonable times.
- (4) Before education records are disclosed to third parties, the school requires a signed and dated written consent of either: (1) a parent of a student who is less than 18 years of age and not attending a post-secondary educational institution; or (2) a student who is at least 18 years of age or attending a post-secondary institution (an eligible student).
- (5) Certain persons may examine education records without a parent's or eligible student's consent, as provided in the above paragraph. These include school officials who have legitimate educational interests; officials of another school, school corporation, or institution of post-secondary education where the student seeks or intends to enroll; and officials of another school, school corporation, or other educational agency in which the student is enrolled or receiving services. This school corporation forwards education records to these agencies without prior notification to the parent or eligible student.
- Directory information will be released to media organizations (including radio, television, and newspapers), colleges, civic or school related organizations, and state or local government agencies without the consent of a parent or eligible student. Directory information may include the student's name, address, parent home and work telephone number, major field of study, participation in official recognized activities and sports, height and weight of members of athletic teams, dates of attendance, awards received, motor vehicle description (including license plate number), hair and eye color, race, sex, date of birth, height, weight, grade level, and other similar information which would not generally be considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. A parent or eligible student may object to disclosure of any of the categories of directory information by filing form (Denial of Permission to Release Certain Directory Information Without Prior Written Consent) from the principal's office no later than fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of receipt of this notice.

July 7, 2009

PARENT'S RIGHT TO KNOW

In accordance with the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, Section IIII(h)(6) PARENT'S RIGHT TO KNOW, this is a notification from Bloomfield School District to every parent of a student in a Title I school that you have the right to request and receive information in a timely manner regarding the professional qualifications of your student's classroom teachers. This information shall include the following:

- If the teacher has met state qualification and licensing criteria for the grade level and subject areas taught;
- If the teacher is teaching under emergency or temporary status in which Indiana qualifications and licensing criteria were waived;
- The teachers baccalaureate degree major, graduate certification, and field of discipline; and
- Whether the student is provided services by paraprofessionals, and if so, their qualifications.

If at any time your student has been taught for 4 or more consecutive weeks by a teacher that is not highly qualified, you will be notified by the school of this information.

All teachers and paraprofessionals working with Bloomfield Elementary students are highly qualified.

If you have any concerns, please feel free to contact the elementary office at 384-4271.

PEST CONTROL POLICY

Bloomfield School District School Board Policy #7415

In accordance with Bloomfield School District School Board Policy #7415 written notice is hereby given to inform annually parents of the District's Pest Control Policy.

The policy states:

"The School District is committed to providing students a safe environment. It seeks to prevent children from being exposed to pests and pesticides. While pesticides protect children from pests that may be found in the school and its surrounding grounds, under some circumstances they may pose a hazard to children. Therefore, pest control practices may involve a variety of chemical and non-chemical methods that are designed to control pests effectively while minimizing potential pesticide exposure to children."

Please contact the appropriate office if you need advance notice of pesticide application. The school nurse will be provided with notice of all pesticide applications.

If you have any questions regarding Bloomfield School District School Board Policy #7415, please contact the Superintendent's Office or the appropriate School Office.

Policy Adopted: 1-25-01 Board Policy-7415

PUBLIC NOTICE of availability of Management Plans for review

- Bloomfield School District schools were inspected as required by the United States Environmental Protection Agency's (USEPA)
 Asbestos Containing Materials in School Rule as amended in 40 CFR par. 763 on Oct. 17, 1987. The inspection was performed
 June 26, 1988. Three year inspections were performed Jan.28, 1991, Feb. 14.1994, Feb. 7,1997, Feb. 21,2000, Feb. 4, 2003, Feb.
 21,2006, March 16,2009, and April 4, 2012, Aug. 28, 2015 and June 5, 2018.
- Required 6 month periodic inspections/surveillances were performed on the following dates:
 Dec. 1, 1988, June 14, 1989, Dec 10, 1989, July 18, 1990, Dec.20,1990, July 5, 1991, Dec.9, 1991, July 1, 1992, Dec. 10, 1992, July 12, 1993, Dec.28,1993, July 11,1994, Dec.13,1994, July 6, 1995, Dec.3, 1995, July2, 1996, Dec.19, 1996, July 30, 1997, Dec. 3, 1997, Aug.11, 1998, Dec.15, 1998, and July 7, 1999. Additional inspections were performed Dec 8,1999, July 12, 2000, Dec.10, 2000, July 11, 2001, Dec. 22,2001, July 10, 2002, Dec.9, 2002, July7, 2003, Dec.9,2003, July 12, 2004, Dec. 13, 2004, July 15, 2005, Dec.20, 2005, July 18, 2006, Dec.11, 2006, July 16, 2007, Dec 28, 2007, July 1, 2008, Dec.22, 2008, July 7,2009, Jan.11, 2010, July 68,2010, Jan, 14, 2011, July 7, 2011, Jan, 11,2012, July 6, 2012, Jan. 16, 2013, July 8, 2013, Jan. 15, 2014, July 8, 2014, Jan. 7, 2015, July 24, 2015, Jan.14, 2016. Additional inspections were performed July 7, 2016, Jan. 17, 2017, July 6, 2017, January 8, 2018, and July 10, 2018, January 24, 2019 and July 1, 2019.
- 3. Abatements were performed June 22,1990, March 28, 1991, June1, 1992, July 30, 1992, Dec.1992, July 8, 1993, July 6, 1994, March 25, 1995, May 24-30, 1995, June 14 and 28,1999, July 7, 2007 and July 19, 2017.

For information or management plan review, contact Local Education Agency designated person, Matt Bales. 812-384-2400.

Air Quality Coordinator

Bloomfield School District, in accordance with Indiana Code 16-41-37.5 has appointed an Indoor Air Quality coordinator.

Matt Bales, Indoor Air Quality Coordinator

Phone: 812-384-2400 E-Mail: mbales@bsd.k12.in.us